

FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED

FORM A

**STATEMENT REGARDING THE ACQUISITION OF CONTROL
OF OR MERGER WITH A DOMESTIC INSURER**

of

Talcott Resolution Life Insurance Company

Talcott Resolution Life and Annuity Insurance Company

American Maturity Life Insurance Company

and

Talcott Resolution International Life Reassurance Corporation

Names of Domestic Insurers

by

Sutton Holdings GP, LLC

Sutton Holdings Investments, Ltd.

Sutton Investments, LLC

TAO Sutton Holdings, LLC

TAO Insurance Holdings, LLC

TAO Sutton Parent, LLC

Sixth Street TAO Partners, L.P.

Sixth Street TAO Partners (A), L.P.

Sixth Street TAO Partners (B), L.P.

Sixth Street TAO Partners (C), L.P.

Sixth Street TAO Partners (D), L.P.

Sixth Street TAO Partners (E), L.P.

Sixth Street TAO Partners (F), L.P.

Super TAO MA, L.P.

Super TAO Contingent MA, L.P.

Knight TAO, L.P.

PSERS TAO Partners Parallel Fund, L.P.

A. Michael Muscolino

and

Alan Waxman

Names of Acquiring Persons (Applicants)

Filed with the Connecticut Insurance Department

Dated: ~~February 1~~May 14, 2021

Name, title, address and telephone number of individual to whom notices and correspondence concerning this Statement should be addressed:

Joshua Peck
General Counsel, Sixth Street Partners, LLC
(together with its affiliates, "Sixth Street")
345 California Street, Suite 3300
San Francisco, CA 94104
Telephone: (415) 486-5905
Email: JPeck@sixthstreet.com

With copies to:

Elizabeth P. Retersdorf
Day Pitney LLP
242 Trumbull Street
Hartford, CT 06103
Telephone: (860) 275-0656
Email: eretersdorf@daypitney.com

Allison J. Tam
Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP
787 Seventh Avenue
New York, New York 10019-6099
Telephone: (212) 728-8282
Email: atam@willkie.com

| 42551784.1

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

This **First Amended and Restated** Form A Statement Regarding the Acquisition of Control of or Merger with a domestic insurer (this “Application”) is submitted to the Connecticut Insurance Department (the “Department”) pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. § 38a-130 by the following persons in connection with their proposed acquisition of control of Talcott Resolution Life Insurance Company, a Connecticut domestic life insurance company (“TL”), Talcott Resolution Life and Annuity Insurance Company, a Connecticut domestic life insurance company that is a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of TL (“TLA”), American Maturity Life Insurance Company, a Connecticut domestic life insurance company that is a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of TL (“AMLIC”), and Talcott Resolution International Life Reassurance Corporation, a Connecticut domestic life insurance company that is a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of TL (“TILR”, and, together with TL, TLA and AMLIC, the “Domestic Insurers”):

- Sutton Holdings GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Sutton LLC”) that will become the general partner of Hopmeadow Holdings (as defined below);
- Sutton Holdings Investments, Ltd., a Bermuda exempted limited company that is the sole member of Sutton LLC (“Sutton Holdings”);
- Sutton Investments, LLC, a Bermuda exempted limited liability company that is sole stockholder of Sutton Holdings (“Sutton Investments”);
- TAO Sutton Holdings, LLC, a Cayman Islands limited liability company that is the owner of 100% of the voting membership interests of Sutton Investments (“TAO Sutton Holdings”);¹
- TAO Insurance Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company that is the managing member with control over voting of TAO Sutton Holdings **and TAO Sutton Parent, defined below** (“TAO Insurance Holdings”);
- **TAO Sutton Parent, LLC, a Cayman Islands limited liability company that is a non-voting member of TAO Sutton Holdings (“TAO Sutton Parent”);**
- **Sixth Street TAO Partners, L.P. (formerly known as TSSP Adjacent Opportunities Partners, L.P.), Sixth Street TAO Partners (A), L.P. (formerly known as TSSP Adjacent Opportunities Partners (A), L.P.), Sixth Street TAO Partners (B), L.P. (formerly known as TSSP Adjacent Opportunities Partners (B), L.P.), Sixth Street TAO Partners (C), L.P. (formerly known as TSSP Adjacent Opportunities Partners (C), L.P.), Sixth Street TAO Partners (D), L.P. (formerly known as TSSP Adjacent Opportunities**

¹ No person other than TAO Sutton Holdings currently owns, or will own following the completion of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, 10% or more of the issued and outstanding voting membership interests of Sutton Investments or have the ability to appoint directors having a large enough number of votes of the members of the board of directors of Sutton Investments that such person would be required to become an applicant under this Form A.

Partners (D), L.P.), Sixth Street TAO Partners (E), L.P. (formerly known as TSSP Adjacent Opportunities Partners (E), L.P.), Sixth Street TAO Partners (F), L.P. (formerly known as TSSP Adjacent Opportunities Partners (F), L.P.), Super TAO MA, L.P., Super TAO Contingent MA, L.P., Knight TAO, L.P., and PSERS TAO Partners Parallel Fund, L.P., each a Delaware limited partnership that is a non-voting member of TAO Sutton Parent (collectively, the “TAO Funds”);

- A. Michael Muscolino, a Co-Founding Partner of Sixth Street; and
- Alan Waxman, a Co-Founding Partner and Chief Executive Officer of Sixth Street.

Sutton LLC, Sutton Holdings, Sutton Investments, TAO Sutton Holdings ~~and~~ TAO Insurance Holdings, TAO Sutton Parent, and the TAO Funds are referred to herein as the “Sixth Street Entity Applicants”. As described in more detail below, Mr. Waxman and Mr. Muscolino are the ultimate controlling persons of the Sixth Street Entity Applicants. The Sixth Street Entity Applicants, Mr. Waxman and Mr. Muscolino are collectively referred to herein as the “Applicants”.

TL directly owns all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of each of the other Domestic Insurers. In turn, Hopmeadow Holdings LP, a Delaware limited partnership (“Hopmeadow Holdings”), indirectly owns all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of Talcott Resolution Life, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Talcott Resolution Life”), which, in turn, owns all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of TL.

On January 18, 2021, Sutton Holdings, Sutton Holdings Merger Sub, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership the general partner of which is Sutton LLC (“Merger Sub”), Hopmeadow Holdings, and Hopmeadow Holdings GP LLC, a Delaware limited liability company that is the general partner of Hopmeadow Holdings (in its own capacity solely for purposes of Section 3.02(e) thereof, and otherwise in its capacity as the LP unitholder representative) entered into that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”), which provides that, subject to the terms and conditions thereof, at the effective time of the transactions contemplated thereby (the “Effective Time”), Merger Sub will merge with and into Hopmeadow Holdings, with Hopmeadow Holdings continuing as the surviving entity the general partner of which will be Sutton LLC (the “Surviving Company”) (the “Proposed Merger”).

Upon the occurrence of the Proposed Merger, the holders of the uncertificated common limited partner interests of Hopmeadow Holdings (the “LP Unitholders”) will be entitled to receive an aggregate amount of consideration equal to (i) \$2,250,000,000, *minus* (ii) any Leakage (as such term is defined in the Merger Agreement), and *minus* (iii) the amount of any dividend paid by TL to its parent, Talcott Resolution Life, prior to the Effective Time in an amount that the parties currently anticipate to be, subject to the receipt of required regulatory approval, approximately \$500,000,000 (the “Pre-Closing Dividend”), subject to certain adjustments described below (the “Merger Consideration”). The Applicants understand that TL will submit an application to the Department under separate cover to obtain the Department’s prior approval or non-disapproval with respect to TL’s proposed payment of the Pre-Closing Dividend.

As a result of the Proposed Merger, immediately following the Effective Time, (i) Sutton LLC will be the general partner of the Surviving Company, (ii) the Surviving Company will own, indirectly, all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of TL, and (iii) TL will continue to own all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of each of the other Domestic Insurers.

A copy of the Merger Agreement is attached hereto as **Exhibit A. The exhibits and schedules to the Merger Agreement (subject to certain exceptions and redactions) are attached as Exhibit A-1.** The description of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement that are set forth herein are qualified in their entirety by reference to the Merger Agreement.

Following the completion of the Proposed Merger, the Applicants intend to continue to operate the business of the Domestic Insurers under the core principle of continuing the Domestic Insurers' prudent management of their responsibilities to their policyholders. The Domestic Insurers' current 400+ employees and management team are expected to continue with the Domestic Insurers following the completion of the Proposed Merger, and the Applicants do not intend to make any material changes to the Domestic Insurers' policyholder administration. In addition, the Applicants intend to offer guidance and support to Talcott Resolution Life and its management in competing for and potentially acquiring blocks of insurance policies and subsidiaries from third parties. The Applicants believe such blocks will add meaningful and diverse income streams, improve the financial strength of the Domestic Insurers, stabilize and potentially grow the employee base, and maintain or improve the Domestic Insurers' ratings.

Accordingly, the Applicants respectfully request the approval of the Connecticut Insurance Commissioner (the "Commissioner") under Conn. Gen. Stat. § 38a-130 for the acquisition of control of the Domestic Insurers as described herein.

ITEM 1. INSURER AND METHOD OF ACQUISITION

(a) The Domestic Insurers

The names and addresses of the Domestic Insurers to which this Application relates are:

Talcott Resolution Life Insurance Company
NAIC Company Code: 88072
1 Griffin Road N
Windsor, CT 06095

Talcott Resolution Life and Annuity Insurance Company
NAIC Company Code: 71153
1 Griffin Road N
Windsor, CT 06095

American Maturity Life Insurance Company
NAIC Company Code: 81213
1 Griffin Road N
Windsor, CT 06095

Talcott Resolution International Life Reassurance Corporation
NAIC Company Code: 93505
1 Griffin Road N
Windsor, CT 06095

(b) Method of Acquisition

As described above, the Merger Agreement provides that, at the Effective Time, Merger Sub will merge with and into Hopmeadow Holdings, with Hopmeadow Holdings continuing as the Surviving Company, the general partner of which will be Sutton LLC. As a result of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, immediately following the Effective Time, (i) Sutton LLC will be the general partner of the Surviving Company, (ii) the Surviving Company will own, indirectly, all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of TL, and (iii) TL will continue to own all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of each of the other Domestic Insurers.

The Merger Agreement provides that the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby is subject to the satisfaction or waiver of customary closing conditions, including, among other things, receipt of approval of this Application by the Commissioner.

ITEM 2. IDENTITY AND BACKGROUND OF EACH OF THE APPLICANTS

(a) Names and Addresses of the Applicants

The name and address or registered address, as applicable, of each of the Applicants seeking to acquire control over the Domestic Insurers are:

Sutton Holdings GP, LLC
4001 Kennett Pike, Suite ~~392~~302
Wilmington, Delaware, 19807

Sutton Holdings Investments, Ltd.
c/o Maples Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Cumberland House, 7th Floor
1 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

Sutton Investments, LLC
c/o Maples Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Cumberland House, 7th Floor
1 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

TAO Sutton Holdings, LLC
c/o Maples Corporate Services Limited
PO Box 309, Uglan House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

TAO Insurance Holdings, LLC
4001 Kennett Pike, Suite ~~392~~302
Wilmington, Delaware, 19807

TAO Sutton Parent, LLC
c/o Maples Corporate Services Limited
PO Box 309, Uglan House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

Sixth Street TAO Partners, L.P.
4001 Kennett Pike, Suite 302
Wilmington, Delaware, 19807

Sixth Street TAO Partners (A), L.P.
4001 Kennett Pike, Suite 302
Wilmington, Delaware, 19807

Sixth Street TAO Partners (B), L.P.
4001 Kennett Pike, Suite 302
Wilmington, Delaware, 19807

Sixth Street TAO Partners (C), L.P.
4001 Kennett Pike, Suite 302
Wilmington, Delaware, 19807

Sixth Street TAO Partners (D), L.P.
4001 Kennett Pike, Suite 302
Wilmington, Delaware, 19807

Sixth Street TAO Partners (E), L.P.
4001 Kennett Pike, Suite 302
Wilmington, Delaware, 19807

Sixth Street TAO Partners (F), L.P.
4001 Kennett Pike, Suite 302

Wilmington, Delaware, 19807

Super TAO MA, L.P.
4001 Kennett Pike, Suite 302
Wilmington, Delaware, 19807

Super TAO Contingent MA, L.P.
4001 Kennett Pike, Suite 302
Wilmington, Delaware, 19807

Knight TAO, L.P.
4001 Kennett Pike, Suite 302
Wilmington, Delaware, 19807

PSERS TAO Partners Parallel Fund, L.P.
4001 Kennett Pike, Suite 302
Wilmington, Delaware, 19807

A. Michael Muscolino
Co-Founding Partner of Sixth Street
Sixth Street
345 California Street, Suite 3300
San Francisco, CA 94104

Alan Waxman
Co-Founding Partner and Chief Executive Officer of Sixth Street
Sixth Street
345 California Street, Suite 3300
San Francisco, CA 94104

(b) Business Operations of the Applicants

The Applicants are part of the business of Sixth Street. Sixth Street is a global investment firm with over \$50 billion in assets under management. Founded in 2009, Sixth Street has more than 320 team members including over 145 investment professionals operating from nine global locations. Sixth Street's investment strategy is thematically driven. Life insurance represents one of Sixth Street's core strategic growth areas globally and it currently has access to a 20-person dedicated insurance team. Sixth Street has been approved by the Dutch Central Bank (the Dutch banking and insurance regulator) as part of its insurance investment activities in Europe.

The TAO ~~investment platform~~, Funds are Sixth Street's flagship cross-platform investment ~~vehiele, vehicles~~. The TAO investment platform was initially formed in 2011 and intentionally designed for long-term, patient investing with capital commitments made via an "evergreen" structure with no fixed realization date. This is particularly important in the context of investments in insurance companies, as it allows the Applicants to take a long-term view on such investments.

The ~~TAO investment platform currently has~~ Applicants define “evergreen” as a platform with committed capital and no fixed term or liquidity requirement for individual investments or investors. The TAO Funds are “evergreen” as they have no fixed term (have unlimited duration) and no liquidity requirement for individual investments or investors (i.e., there is no ability for investors to “redeem” their investment in the TAO Funds or otherwise cause the sale of underlying investments of the TAO Funds to generate liquidity). As such, the Applicants’ proposed investment in the Domestic Insurers will not be subject to a fixed term or any other requirement to seek liquidity for investors.

The TAO Funds do not “refresh” investors. If, after a minimum period (generally at least five years), an individual investor terminates its commitment period, such investor ceases to participate in new investments, but remains invested in existing investments. Therefore, there is no impact on existing investments including the Applicants’ proposed investment in the Domestic Insurers. The investors in the TAO Funds are not guaranteed any investment return.

The TAO Funds had approximately \$24.7 billion in committed capital and ~~has~~ undrawn capital commitments of approximately \$17 billion. ~~Since inception, TAO has~~ as of February 2021. The TAO Funds had invested approximately \$13.4 billion of equity as of February 2021. Attached hereto as Exhibit B is a letter from State Street, Fund Administrator of the TAO platform Funds, stating the unfunded capital commitments of ~~TSSP Adjacent Opportunities Partners, L.P. and its parallel investment funds~~ the TAO Funds as of January 15, 2021 and the net asset value as of the most recent quarter close as of the date of the letter (September 30, 2020).

Further details concerning each of the Applicants are set forth below.

Sixth Street Entity Applicants. Each of the Sixth Street Entity Applicants, except for the TAO Funds, is a newly established entity organized under the laws of Delaware, Bermuda or the Cayman Islands, as applicable, for the purpose of consummating the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement. Because the Sixth Street Entity Applicants, other than the TAO Funds, are recently established entities, they have conducted no operations (other than in connection with the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby).

TAO Insurance Holdings is the managing member of TAO Sutton Holdings, which, in turn, is the owner of 100% of the voting membership interests of Sutton Investments. Sutton Investments is managed by its Board of Directors and TAO Sutton Holdings currently has the power to elect all the members of the Board of Directors through its ownership of the voting membership interests of Sutton Investments. Sutton Investments is the sole stockholder of Sutton Holdings, which, in turn, is the sole member of Sutton LLC. The managing member with control over the voting of TAO Insurance Holdings is Mr. Muscolino. Pursuant to the limited liability company agreement of TAO Insurance Holdings, Mr. Waxman, as a member of TAO Insurance Holdings, has the authority to appoint the managing member of TAO Insurance Holdings. As a result, Mr. Waxman and Mr. Muscolino are the ultimate controlling persons of ~~the Sixth Street Entity Applicants~~ Sutton LLC, Sutton Holdings, Sutton Investments, TAO Sutton Holdings, TAO Insurance Holdings, and TAO Sutton Parent. Prior to Sixth Street, Mr. Waxman and Mr. Muscolino worked together at

Goldman Sachs & Co. (“Goldman Sachs”), and, along with several other members of Sixth Street’s leadership team, have been working together for most of the past two decades.

As described above, the Sixth Street Entity Applicants include TAO Sutton Parent and the TAO Funds. TAO Insurance Holdings is the managing member of TAO Sutton Parent, which in turn is a non-voting member of TAO Sutton Holdings, and the TAO Funds are non-voting members of TAO Sutton Parent. TAO Sutton Parent was recently established in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, and each of the TAO Funds are existing funds established by Sixth Street between July 11, 2013 and August 20, 2018. TAO Sutton Parent and the TAO Funds are Applicants to this Application, at the request of the Department, because they are providing the funding to TAO Sutton Holdings for purposes of the Proposed Merger and will hold the primary economic interest in the Domestic Insurers going forward. Mr. Waxman is the ultimate controlling person of the TAO Funds.

A. Michael Muscolino. Mr. Muscolino is a Co-Founding Partner of Sixth Street focusing on the ~~firm's~~firm’s Global Asset Investing. He serves as a director on the Boards of various Sixth Street-managed portfolio companies. Prior to joining Sixth Street, Mr. Muscolino was a Principal at FG Companies, a consumer and commercial finance advisory firm. Previously Mr. Muscolino worked at Goldman Sachs from 1999 to 2007, most recently in the Americas Special Situations Group (“AmSSG”). Prior to Goldman Sachs, Mr. Muscolino worked in the financial services practice at Andersen Consulting from 1993 to 1997. Mr. Muscolino currently serves on the board of SMART, which is focused on education equity for low-income students in San Francisco. Mr. Muscolino holds a B.S. in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign and an M.B.A. from the University of Chicago Booth School of Business.

Alan Waxman. Mr. Waxman is a Co-Founding Partner and Chief Executive Officer of Sixth Street. He has served as Managing Partner and Chief Investment Officer of Sixth Street since inception. Prior to co-founding Sixth Street, Mr. Waxman was a Partner at Goldman Sachs where he founded, built and led a variety of investment businesses. During his career at Goldman Sachs, he co-headed the AmSSG, which invested that firm’s capital in both the public markets and private transactions. He also served as Chairman of the Investment Committee for AmSSG and the Goldman Sachs Specialty Lending Group. He began his career at Goldman Sachs in 1998. Mr. Waxman holds a B.A. in International Relations from the University of Pennsylvania and currently serves on the Board of Overseers for the University’s College of Arts and Sciences, as well as on the board of The Tipping Point Community and the Advisory Council of the Boys and Girls Club of the Peninsula, which are focused on fighting poverty and inequality of opportunity in the San Francisco Bay Area.

(c) Applicants’ Organizational Charts

Attached to this Application as **Exhibit C-1** is an organizational chart presenting the identities and interrelationships among the Domestic Insurers and their controlling persons immediately before the Effective Time. Attached to this Application as **Exhibit C-2** is an organizational chart presenting the identities and interrelationships among the Applicants and the Domestic Insurers immediately following the Effective Time. Such charts indicate the percentage of voting securities of each person that is owned or controlled by the Applicants and that is reflected therein and the

type of entity and jurisdiction of domicile of each such person is specified therein. A list of persons controlled by the Sixth Street Entity Applicants is attached to this Application as **Exhibit C-3**.

No court proceedings involving a reorganization or liquidation are pending with respect to any of the Applicants. It is in the nature of a global investment group that, from time to time, group companies, investment funds, the investment vehicles or portfolio investments which they have operated or with which they have been affiliated, may have been put into liquidation, wound up, ceased trading and/or entered into other similar arrangements, including voluntary arrangements with their creditors, in the ordinary course of business (including for the purposes of corporate restructuring or as a result of the investment being wound up to provide a return to investors). The Applicants are not aware of any such arrangements or liquidation proceedings which are either material to, or could reasonably be expected to be relevant to, this Application or any entity listed in **Exhibit C-3**.

ITEM 3. IDENTITY AND BACKGROUND OF INDIVIDUALS ASSOCIATED WITH THE APPLICANTS

A list of the current directors and executive officers of the Sixth Street Entity Applicants is attached hereto as **Exhibit D-1**. A list of the proposed directors of TL following the closing of the Proposed Merger (**the “Closing”**) is attached hereto as **Exhibit D-2**. The Applicants do not have current plans to appoint any new individuals as: (i) directors of TLA, AMLIC or TILR, or (ii) executive officers of any of the Domestic Insurers.

Additionally, set forth below is a list of (i) the current directors and executive officers of the Domestic Insurers and (ii) proposed directors and executive officers of the Domestic Insurers following the Closing. Current directors and executive officers, whose names and titles have been provided to the Applicants by the Domestic Insurers, are indicated by an X in the Pre-Acquisition column. Proposed directors and executive officers are indicated by an X in the Post-Acquisition column.

Talcott Resolution Life Insurance Company

Directors

<u>Name</u>	<u>Title</u>	<u>Pre-Acquisition</u>	<u>Post-Acquisition</u>
<u>Richard J. Carbone</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	
<u>Henry Cornell</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	
<u>Dana W. LaForge</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	
<u>Emily R. Pollack</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	
<u>Michael S. Rubinoff</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	
<u>Peter F. Sannizzaro</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Manu Sareen</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	
<u>David I. Schamis</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	

<u>Name</u>	<u>Title</u>	<u>Pre-Acquisition</u>	<u>Post-Acquisition</u>
<u>Robert W. Stein</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	
<u>Amy Stepnowski</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	
<u>Heath L. Watkin</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	
<u>Matthew J. Poznar</u>	<u>Director</u>		<u>X</u>
<u>Lisa M. Proch</u>	<u>Director</u>		<u>X</u>
<u>Samir Srivastava</u>	<u>Director</u>		<u>X</u>
<u>Independent Director*</u>	<u>Director</u>		<u>X</u>
<u>Independent Director*</u>	<u>Director</u>		<u>X</u>

*The Applicants are in discussions with candidates for the independent directorships of TL. The Applicants will provide information for these directors to the Department, including the required NAIC Biographical Affidavits, once confirmed.

Executive Officers

<u>Name</u>	<u>Title</u>	<u>Pre-Acquisition</u>	<u>Post-Acquisition</u>
<u>Jeremy Billiel</u>	<u>Assistant Vice President & Treasurer</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>John B. Brady</u>	<u>Vice President & Appointed Actuary</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Christopher B. Cramer</u>	<u>Corporate Secretary & Vice President</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Michael R. Hazel</u>	<u>Vice President & Controller</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Peter F. Sannizzaro</u>	<u>President & Chief Executive Officer</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Robert R. Siracusa</u>	<u>Chief Financial Officer & Vice President</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Lisa Proch</u>	<u>General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer, Senior Vice President</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>

Talcott Resolution Life and Annuity Insurance Company

Directors

<u>Name</u>	<u>Title</u>	<u>Pre-Acquisition</u>	<u>Post-Acquisition</u>
<u>Matthew J. Poznar</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Peter F. Sannizzaro</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Robert R. Siracusa</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>

Executive Officers

<u>Name</u>	<u>Title</u>	<u>Pre-Acquisition</u>	<u>Post-Acquisition</u>
<u>Jeremy Billiel</u>	<u>Assistant Vice President & Treasurer</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>John B. Brady</u>	<u>Vice President & Appointed Actuary</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Christopher B. Cramer</u>	<u>Corporate Secretary & Vice President</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Michael R. Hazel</u>	<u>Vice President & Controller</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Peter F. Sannizzaro</u>	<u>President & Chief Executive Officer</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Robert R. Siracusa</u>	<u>Chief Financial Officer & Vice President</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Lisa Proch</u>	<u>General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer, Senior Vice President</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>

American Maturity Life Insurance Company

Directors

<u>Name</u>	<u>Title</u>	<u>Pre-Acquisition</u>	<u>Post-Acquisition</u>
<u>Matthew J. Poznar</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Peter F. Sannizzaro</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Robert R. Siracusa</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>

Executive Officers

<u>Name</u>	<u>Title</u>	<u>Pre-Acquisition</u>	<u>Post-Acquisition</u>
<u>Jeremy Billiel</u>	<u>Assistant Vice President & Treasurer</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Christopher B. Cramer</u>	<u>Corporate Secretary & Vice President</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Michael R. Hazel</u>	<u>Vice President & Controller</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Peter F. Sannizzaro</u>	<u>President & Chief Executive Officer</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Robert R. Siracusa</u>	<u>Chief Financial Officer & Vice President</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Zengdi Zhuang</u>	<u>Appointed Actuary</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Lisa Proch</u>	<u>General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer, Senior Vice President</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>

Talcott Resolution International Life Reassurance Corporation

Directors

<u>Name</u>	<u>Title</u>	<u>Pre-Acquisition</u>	<u>Post-Acquisition</u>
<u>Matthew J. Poznar</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Peter F. Sannizzaro</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Robert R. Siracusa</u>	<u>Director</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>

Executive Officers

<u>Name</u>	<u>Title</u>	<u>Pre-Acquisition</u>	<u>Post-Acquisition</u>
<u>Jeremy Billiel</u>	<u>Assistant Vice President & Treasurer</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Christopher B. Cramer</u>	<u>Corporate Secretary & Vice President</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Michael R. Hazel</u>	<u>Vice President & Controller</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Peter F. Sannizzaro</u>	<u>President & Chief Executive Officer</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Robert R. Siracusa</u>	<u>Chief Financial Officer & Vice President</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>

<u>Name</u>	<u>Title</u>	<u>Pre-Acquisition</u>	<u>Post-Acquisition</u>
<u>Zengdi Zhuang</u>	<u>Appointed Actuary</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>
<u>Lisa Proch</u>	<u>General Counsel and Chief Compliance Officer, Senior Vice President</u>	<u>X</u>	<u>X</u>

As described in the Plan of Operations, attached as Exhibit F, the Applicants plan to keep the Domestic Insurers’ management in place, and the current 400+ employees of Talcott Resolution Life and its subsidiaries are expected to continue with Talcott Resolution Life following the Closing.

Two sets of NAIC Biographical Affidavits for the persons listed in **Exhibit D-1** and **Exhibit D-2** (except ~~for those persons whose NAIC Biographical Affidavits are already on file with the Department~~ in the case of the proposed independent directors of TL, which have not been confirmed) and for Messrs. Waxman and Muscolino are attached hereto as **Exhibit D-3**. One set of NAIC Biographical Affidavits is being filed with personal information, such as Social Security Numbers, dates of birth, telephone numbers and home addresses, redacted. A second, unredacted set of NAIC Biographical Affidavits ~~is being~~ was previously separately filed in a sealed envelope marked “Confidential”. The Applicants respectfully request that: (a) the redacted portions of the biographical affidavits be afforded confidential treatment, (b) the Applicants be notified in advance of any proposed disclosure of the redacted portions by the Department and (c) the Applicants be given a reasonable opportunity to seek a protective order or take other action to prevent or limit any such disclosure. ~~The Applicants will submit~~

The NAIC Biographical Affidavits for the proposed directors and executive officers of the Domestic Insurers following the Closing are attached hereto as Exhibit D-4, except in the case of the proposed independent directors of TL, for which candidates are still being evaluated. These NAIC Biographical Affidavits are being filed with personal information, such as Social Security Numbers, dates of birth, telephone numbers and home addresses, redacted. A second, unredacted set of NAIC Biographical Affidavits was previously filed with the Department in a sealed envelope marked “Confidential”. The NAIC Biographical Affidavits were executed within the last three years. The Applicants respectfully request that: (a) the redacted portions of these biographical affidavits be afforded confidential treatment, (b) the Domestic Insurers be notified in advance of any proposed disclosure of the redacted portions by the Department and (c) the Domestic Insurers be given a reasonable opportunity to seek a protective order or take other action to prevent or limit any such disclosure.

The Applicants have submitted the NAIC Biographical Affidavits that are attached hereto as **Exhibit D-3** to a third-party background check service provider, **Owens OnLine, Inc.** (“**Owens OnLine**”). Owens OnLine will separately provide or has provided third-party verifications to the Department with respect to those individuals.

The Domestic Insurers have advised the Applicants that they have submitted the biographical affidavits of the directors and executive officers of the Domestic Insurers that are attached hereto as Exhibit D-4 to a third-party background check service provider, Heartland Investigative Group (“Heartland”). Heartland has separately provided third-party verifications to the Department with respect to those individuals.

(a) Names and Business Addresses.

The names of the current directors and executive officers of the Sixth Street Entity Applicants are included in **Exhibit D-1**. The business addresses are described in the NAIC Biographical Affidavits for each such person and for Messrs. Waxman and Muscolino.

(b) Present Principal Business Activity, Occupation or Employment.

The principal business activity, occupation or employment for Messrs. Waxman, Muscolino and for each person listed in **Exhibit D-1** are described in the NAIC Biographical Affidavits for each such person.

(c) Material Occupations, Positions, Offices and Employment.

The material occupations, positions, offices or employment during the last five years, including the starting and ending dates of each and the name, principal business and address of any business corporation or other organization in which each such occupation, position, office or employment was carried on, with respect to Messrs. Waxman, Muscolino and each person listed in **Exhibit D-1** are described in the NAIC Biographical Affidavits for each such person.

(d) Criminal Proceedings.

None of Messrs. Waxman and Muscolino and no person listed in **Exhibit D-1** has been convicted in a criminal proceeding (excluding minor traffic violations) during the last ten years.

(e) Bankruptcy Proceedings.

None of Messrs. Waxman and Muscolino and no person listed in **Exhibit D-1** has been the subject of any proceedings under the Federal Bankruptcy Code (or, in the case of an alien person, such equivalent provision) during the last ten years.

Other than as set forth in the NAIC Biographical Affidavits that are attached hereto as **Exhibit D-3**, no business or organization in which any of Mr. Waxman or Mr. Muscolino or any person listed in **Exhibit D-1** was a director, officer, trustee, partner, owner, manager or other official has been subject to any proceeding under the Federal Bankruptcy Code (or, in the case of an alien person, such equivalent provision) during the last ten years either during the time in which such person was a director, officer or trustee, if a corporation, or a partner, owner, manager, joint venturer, or official, if not a corporation, or within twelve (12) months thereafter.

(f) Injunctions from Violating Laws.

None of Messrs. Waxman and Muscolino and no person listed in **Exhibit D-1** has been enjoined, either temporarily or permanently, by a court of competent jurisdiction from violating any federal or state law or in the case of an alien person, applicable law regulating the business of insurance, securities, or banking, during the last ten years.

(g) Credit Reports.

Credit reports for Messrs. Waxman and Muscolino and the persons listed in **Exhibit D-1** by an independent credit rating agency acceptable to the Commissioner will be submitted upon the request of the Commissioner. The Applicants acknowledge that the Department reserves the right to receive credit histories for all individuals associated with the Applicants.

ITEM 4. NATURE, SOURCE AND AMOUNT OF CONSIDERATION

(a) Consideration

Upon the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, the LP Unitholders will be entitled to receive the Merger Consideration in an amount equal to (i) \$2,250,000,000, *minus* (ii) any Leakage, and *minus* (ii) the amount of any Pre-Closing Dividend paid by TL to its parent, Talcott Resolution Life, prior to the Effective Time. The parties currently anticipate that, subject to the receipt of required regulatory approval, the Pre-Closing Dividend amount will be approximately \$500,000,000; however, the Merger Agreement provides that, if the Pre-Closing Dividend amount is less than \$500,000,000, then the Merger Consideration will be further reduced by an amount equal to 50% of the difference between \$500,000,000 and any Pre-Closing Dividend amount (the “Dividend Restriction Purchase Price Adjustment”), provided that the Dividend Restriction Purchase Price Adjustment shall not exceed \$125,000,000. Assuming that the Pre-Closing Dividend will be in the amount of \$500,000,000 and that there will not be any Leakage, the Applicants currently anticipate that the total Merger Consideration payable under the Merger Agreement will be \$1,750,000,000. The Applicants understand that TL will submit an application to the Department under separate cover to obtain the Department’s prior approval or non-disapproval with respect to TL’s proposed payment of the Pre-Closing Dividend.

In connection with the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, ~~TSSP Adjacent Opportunities Partners, L.P. and its parallel investment funds~~ the TAO Funds through TAO Sutton Holdings have committed to provide, or cause to be provided, to Sutton Holdings the equity financing necessary to fund the Merger Consideration pursuant to and subject to the terms of an equity commitment letter (the “Equity Commitment Letter”). A copy of the Equity Commitment

Letter is attached hereto as Exhibit E.² The source of the funds for this equity financing will be the ~~Sixth Street TAO investment platform, including TSSP Adjacent Opportunities Partners, L.P. and its parallel investment funds~~ Funds. In particular, the Applicants anticipate that the equity financing will be sourced from ~~TSSP Adjacent Opportunities Partners, L.P. and its parallel investment funds that are, themselves,~~ the TAO Funds, as indirect members of TAO Sutton Holdings, and cash on hand at the Effective Time.

In addition, the Applicants are ~~exploring the possibility of using funds from~~ continuing to negotiate with certain ~~third-party co-investors~~ investors (the “Co-Investors”) ~~to be identified by the Applicants prior to the Closing that will invest in the Domestic Insurers outside of the TAO Funds~~ to fund a portion of the Merger Consideration. None of the Co-Investors is expected to own, indirectly through its ownership of voting membership interests of Sutton Investments, 10% or more of the issued and outstanding voting shares of any of the Domestic Insurers, or would receive any direct or indirect voting interests in the Domestic Insurers. All Co-Investors will be passive investors and will not own any voting securities of the Domestic Insurers or of any of the Applicants and will not have the ability to appoint directors ~~having a large enough number of the votes of the members of the board of directors of Sutton Investments that such Co-Investor would be required to become an applicant under this Form A. Once such terms have been finalized, if at all, the Applicants will notify the Department and furnish an updated copy of Exhibit C-2, indicating the effects of such investment on TAO Sutton Holdings’ ownership percentage of Sutton Investments.~~ or the Domestic Insurers. As of the date hereof, the co-investment process remains underway.

(b) Criteria

The Applicants and Hopmeadow Holdings, with the assistance of their respective advisers and under the direction of their respective boards of directors, determined the nature and amount of the consideration for the merger described herein and the other terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement through arm’s-length negotiation.

(c) Confidentiality for Identity of the Lender

Not applicable.

ITEM 5. FUTURE PLANS OF INSURER

The Applicants intend to offer guidance and support to Talcott Resolution Life and its management in competing for, and potentially acquiring, blocks of insurance policies and subsidiaries from third parties. The Applicants believe such blocks will add meaningful and diverse income streams, improve the financial strength of the Domestic Insurers, stabilize and potentially grow the employee base, and maintain or improve the Domestic Insurers’ ratings.

² The Applicants confirm that the “Transaction Agreement” referenced in Exhibit E is the same as the Merger Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Except as described in this Form A or the Plan of Operations that is attached hereto as **Exhibit F**, the Applicants have no present plans for any of the Domestic Insurers to declare an extraordinary dividend (as such term is defined in Conn. Gen. Stat. § 38a-136(f)), to liquidate any of the Domestic Insurers, to sell the assets of any of the Domestic Insurers (other than asset sales in the ordinary course of business), to merge any of the Domestic Insurers with any person or persons or to make any other material changes in their business operations or corporate structure or management. In addition, the Applicants and their affiliates do not currently have any plans or proposals for ownership or control of any of the Domestic Insurers' current affiliates which may have a material effect on any of the Domestic Insurers.

The Applicants do not have current plans to appoint any new individuals as: (i) directors of TLA, AMLIC or TILR, or (ii) executive officers of any of the Domestic Insurers. A list of the proposed directors of TL following the closing of the Proposed Merger is attached hereto as **Exhibit D-2**. The Domestic Insurers' current 400+ employees and management team are expected to continue with the Domestic Insurers following the completion of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement. The Applicants do not currently have any proposed integration plans with respect to the Domestic Insurers and have no current plans to make any employment reductions or move the Domestic Insurers' headquarters from Connecticut as a result of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement. **The Applicants are continuing to evaluate candidates for the independent directorships of TL. The Applicants will provide information for these directors to the Department, including the required NAIC Biographical Affidavits, once confirmed.**

The Plan of Operations for the Domestic Insurers is attached hereto as **Exhibit F, and a supplement to the Plan of Operations for the Domestic Insurers is attached hereto as Exhibit F-1**. The three-year financial projections for each of the Domestic Insurers are attached hereto as **Exhibit G**. Annex A to the Plan of Operations for the Domestic Insurers sets forth certain post-closing actions that the Applicants plan to evaluate following the closing of the Proposed Merger. The closing of the Proposed Merger is not conditioned on the Department's approval of such actions. Form D filings with respect to each of these potential post-closing actions would be submitted to the Department. The Applicants understand and acknowledge that approval of the Proposed Merger will not indicate approval of any post-closing actions and that these actions will be subject to separate review and fulsome consideration for Department approval or non-disapproval upon filing of the Form D filings.

ITEM 6. VOTING SECURITIES TO BE ACQUIRED

TILR currently has 1,000,000 shares of common stock issued and outstanding, all of which are owned by TL. TLA currently has 2,000 shares of common stock issued and outstanding, all of which are owned by TL. AMLIC currently has 12,500 shares of common stock issued and outstanding, all of which are owned by TL. TL currently has 1,000 shares of common stock issued and outstanding, all of which are owned by Talcott Resolution Life.

The Merger Agreement provides that, subject to the terms and conditions thereof, at the Effective Time, Merger Sub will merge with and into Hopmeadow Holdings, with Hopmeadow Holdings continuing as the Surviving Company the general partner of which will be Sutton LLC. As a result

of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, immediately following the Effective Time, (i) Sutton LLC will be the general partner of the Surviving Company, (ii) the Surviving Company will own, indirectly, all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of TL, and (iii) TL will continue to own all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of each of the other Domestic Insurers.

The terms of the proposed transaction are summarized in Item 1(b) hereof. A statement as to the method by which the fairness of the proposal was determined is included in Item 4(b) hereof.

ITEM 7. OWNERSHIP OF VOTING SECURITIES

All of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of each of TILR, TLA and AMLIC are currently directly owned by TL. In turn, all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of TL are currently indirectly owned by Hopmeadow Holdings. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, following the completion of the transactions contemplated thereby, Sutton LLC will become the indirect owner of all of the issued and outstanding voting securities of each of the Domestic Insurers. Other than the rights of the Applicants under the Merger Agreement and as otherwise described in this Application, there are no voting securities of any class of the Domestic Insurers that are held of record, beneficially owned or concerning which there is a right to acquire beneficial ownership by the Applicants, their respective affiliates or, to the knowledge of the Applicants, any person listed in Item 3.

ITEM 8. CONTRACTS, ARRANGEMENTS, OR UNDERSTANDINGS WITH RESPECT TO VOTING SECURITIES OF THE INSURER

Other than as described in this Application, there are no contracts, arrangements or understandings with respect to any voting security of any of the Domestic Insurers in which the Applicants, their respective affiliates or, to the knowledge of the Applicants, any person listed in Item 3 is involved, including any transfer of any securities, joint ventures, loan or option arrangements, puts or calls, guarantees of loans, guarantees against loss or guarantees of profits, division of losses or profits or the giving or withholding of proxies.

ITEM 9. RECENT PURCHASES OF VOTING SECURITIES

None of the Applicants, their respective affiliates or, to the knowledge of the Applicants, any person listed in Item 3 has purchased any voting securities of any of the Domestic Insurers during the [twelve \(12\)](#) calendar months preceding the filing of this Application.

ITEM 10. RECENT RECOMMENDATIONS TO PURCHASE

Other than the Merger Agreement, none of the Applicants, their respective affiliates or, to the knowledge of the Applicants, any person listed in Item 3 has made any recommendations to purchase any voting security of any of the Domestic Insurers, and no such recommendations have been made by anyone based upon interviews or at the suggestion of the Applicants, their respective

affiliates or, to the knowledge of the Applicants, any person listed in Item 3, in each case during the twelve (12) calendar months preceding the filing of this Application.

ITEM 11. AGREEMENTS WITH BROKER-DEALERS

None of the Applicants, their respective affiliates or, to the knowledge of the Applicants, any person listed in Item 3 has made any agreements, contracts, or understandings with any broker-dealer as to solicitation of voting securities of any of the Domestic Insurers.

ITEM 12. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND EXHIBITS

(a) - (b) Listing of Exhibits; Financial Statements

The Sixth Street Entity Applicants, other than the TAO Funds, are newly established entities organized for the purpose of consummating the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, and, as a result, do not have audited financial statements available. As noted above, the TAO ~~investment platform currently has~~ Funds had approximately \$24.7 billion in committed capital and ~~has had~~ undrawn capital commitments of approximately \$17 billion as of February 2021. The letter from State Street, Fund Administrator of the TAO ~~platform~~ Funds, which is attached as **Exhibit B**, sets forth the unfunded capital commitments of ~~TSSP Adjacent Opportunities Partners, L.P. and its parallel investment funds~~ the TAO Funds as of January 15, 2021 and the net asset value as of the most recent quarter close as of the date of the letter (September 30, 2020). Pursuant to and subject to the terms of the Equity Commitment Letter, which is attached hereto as **Exhibit E**, ~~TSSP Adjacent Opportunities Partners, L.P. and its parallel investment funds~~ the TAO Funds through TAO Sutton Holdings have committed to provide, or cause to be provided, to Sutton Holdings the equity financing necessary to fund the Merger Consideration.

As described above in Item 5, Messrs. Waxman and Muscolino will not be funding any portion of the Merger Consideration and the Applicants will not look to Messrs. Waxman and Muscolino in their individual capacity in the future to provide additional capital to the Domestic Insurers in the unlikely event a solvency capital infusion to the Domestic Insurers were required. In such circumstances, the Applicants may consider whether the TAO Funds or any third-party Co-Investors would provide additional capital to the Domestic Insurers. In addition, the Applicants may consider other options for improving the Domestic Insurers' capital position, such as reinsurance and raising additional equity capital. Accordingly, the Applicants respectfully submit that a demonstration of Mr. Waxman's and Mr. Muscolino's independent ability to provide additional capital to the Domestic Insurers should not be required. Please find attached hereto as Exhibit H-8 copies of the TAO Funds' unaudited combined and condensed financial statements as of December 31, 2020, December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018. The Applicants respectfully submit that these financial statements confirm that the TAO Funds have sufficient capital to be able to provide appropriate capital to the Domestic Insurers if required.

The financial statements of the Applicants and related descriptions are as follows:

Sutton LLC. Sutton LLC's unaudited financial statements as of January 11, 2021, as well as an attestation statement from an authorized officer for such unaudited financial statements, are provided as **Exhibit H-1**.

Sutton Holdings. Sutton Holdings' unaudited financial statements as of January 11, 2021, as well as an attestation statement from an authorized officer for such unaudited financial statements, are provided as **Exhibit H-2**.

Sutton Investments. Sutton Investments' unaudited financial statements as of January 11, 2021, as well as an attestation statement from an authorized officer for such unaudited financial statements, are provided as **Exhibit H-3**.

TAO Sutton Holdings. TAO Sutton Holdings' unaudited financial statements as of January 11, 2021, as well as an attestation statement from an authorized officer for such unaudited financial statements, are provided as **Exhibit H-4**.

TAO Insurance Holdings. TAO Insurance Holdings' unaudited financial statements as of January 8, 2021, as well as an attestation statement from an authorized officer for such unaudited financial statements, are provided as **Exhibit H-5**.

Alan Waxman and A. Michael Muscolino. Mr. Waxman's and Mr. Muscolino's separate net worth ~~affidavit is~~ affidavits are provided as **Exhibit H-6**.

TAO Sutton Parent. TAO Sutton Parent's unaudited financial statements as of April 16, 2021, as well as an attestation statement from an authorized officer for such unaudited financial statements, are provided as Exhibit H-7.

TAO Funds. TAO Funds' unaudited combined and condensed financial statements as of December 31, 2020, December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, are provided as Exhibit H-8.

(c) Offers

Other than as described in this Application, the Applicants are not aware of any tender offers for, requests or invitations for, tenders of, exchange offers for, or agreements to acquire or exchange any voting securities of any of the Domestic Insurers, or any soliciting materials relating thereto.

Other than certain agreements described in Item 5 hereof, the Applicants are not contemplating entering into any proposed employment, consultation, advisory or management contracts concerning any of the Domestic Insurers.

The Applicants do not prepare any annual reports to their shareholders. Hopmeadow Holdings has advised the Applicants that the Domestic Insurers do not prepare any annual reports to their shareholders.

Attached hereto are the following Exhibits:

Exhibit A: Merger Agreement*

- Exhibit A-1:** **Exhibits and Schedules to Merger Agreement Subject to Certain Exceptions and Redactions**
- Exhibit B:** Letter Confirming Unfunded Capital Commitments and Net Asset Value for ~~TSSP-Adjacent Opportunities Partners, L.P. and Its Parallel Investment~~the TAO Funds*
- Exhibit C-1:** Organizational Chart Prior to the Change of Control*
- Exhibit C-2:** Updated Organizational Chart Following the Change of Control
- Exhibit C-3:** List of Affiliates of the Applicants*
- Exhibit D-1:** Updated List of Directors and Executive Officers of the Sixth Street Entity Applicants
- Exhibit D-2:** Updated List of Directors of TL Following the Completion of the Proposed Merger*
- Exhibit D-3:** Biographical Affidavits of the Directors and Executive Officers of the Applicants and the Proposed Directors of TL*
- Exhibit D-4:** **Biographical Affidavits of the Directors and Executive Officers of the Domestic Insurers**
- Exhibit E:** Equity Commitment Letter*
- Exhibit F:** Plan of Operations for the Domestic Insurers*
- Exhibit F-1:** **Supplement to Plan of Operations for the Domestic Insurers**
- Exhibit G:** Three-Year Statutory Financial Projections for each of the Domestic Insurers*
- Exhibit H-1:** Unaudited Financial Statements of Sutton LLC*
- Exhibit H-2:** Unaudited Financial Statements of Sutton Holdings*
- Exhibit H-3:** Unaudited Financial Statements of Sutton Investments*
- Exhibit H-4:** Unaudited Financial Statements of TAO Sutton Holdings*
- Exhibit H-5:** Unaudited Financial Statements of TAO Insurance Holdings*

- Exhibit H-6:** [Updated Separate Net Worth Affidavit](#) Affidavits of Mr. Waxman and Mr. Muscolino
- [Exhibit H-7:](#)** [Unaudited Financial Statements of TAO Sutton Parent](#)
- [Exhibit H-8:](#)** [TAO Funds' Unaudited Combined and Condensed Financial Statements as of December 31, 2020, December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018](#)
- Exhibit I-1:** Statutory Financial Statements for TL as of December 31, 2019, December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017*
- Exhibit I-2:** Statutory Financial Statements for TLA as of December 31, 2019, December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017*
- Exhibit I-3:** Statutory Financial Statements for AMLIC as of December 31, 2019, December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017*
- Exhibit I-4:** Statutory Financial Statements for TIRL as of December 31, 2019, December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017*
- Exhibit J:** Audited Financial Statements of Hopmeadow Holdings as of December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018*
- [Exhibit K:](#)** [HSR Filing](#)
- [Exhibit L:](#)** [Statutory Financial Statements for the Domestic Insurers as of December 31, 2020 and Quarterly Financial Statements for the Domestic Insurers as of March 31, 2021](#)
- [Exhibit M:](#)** [Annual Reports of Klaverblad Levensverzekering N.V., Lifetri Uitvaartverzekeringen N.V., and Lifetri Verzekeringen N.V. as of December 31, 2019](#)

[*Exhibit previously submitted to the Department as part of the Form A Statement Regarding the Acquisition of Control of or Merger with a Domestic Insurer dated February 1, 2021.](#)

ITEM 13. AGREEMENT REQUIREMENTS FOR ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Applicants agree to provide, to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information required by Form F within **fifteen (15)** days after the end of the month in which the acquisition of control of the Domestic Insurer occurs.

ITEM 14. OTHER INFORMATION

(a) Other Regulatory Filings.

No regulatory filings are required to be made by the Applicants in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement other than a notice to the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”) and the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice (“DOJ”) in accordance with the U.S. Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 (the “HSR Filing”). A copy of ~~this filing is available to be provided to the Department upon the Commissioner’s request.~~ the HSR Filing (subject to certain exceptions and redactions) is attached hereto as Exhibit K. The waiting period for the FTC and DOJ to review the Proposed Merger pursuant to the HSR Filing expired on March 3, 2021.

(b) Competitive Impact Analysis.

None of the Applicants currently controls any insurer that writes any insurance business in Connecticut or in any other U.S. state. Consequently, the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement will not produce any market share increase in the direct written insurance premium in any line of business in Connecticut. For these reasons the Applicants respectfully submit that the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement will not substantially lessen competition in any line of insurance business in any section of the Connecticut or tend to create a monopoly therein.

(c) Additional Information.

(i) Financial Strength and Debt Ratings of the Applicants and the Domestic Insurers.

There are no financial strength or debt ratings issued with respect to any of the Applicants.

The Applicants understand that the Domestic Insurers’ ratings are currently as follows:

TL: BBB (S&P Global – financial strength rating); BBB (S&P Global – credit rating); B++ (AM Best – financial strength rating)

TLA: BBB (S&P Global – financial strength rating); BBB (S&P Global – credit rating); B++ (AM Best – financial strength rating)

AMLIC: None.

TILR: None.

The Applicants will provide the Department with rating agency updates (if any) throughout the duration of the Department’s review of this Application. The Domestic Insurers have advised the Applicants that Talcott Resolution Life met with all three rating agencies

immediately prior to the public announcement of the Proposed Merger. Post-announcement, all three rating agencies affirmed Talcott Resolution Life's ratings with stable outlooks.

- (ii) Material Litigation or Government Investigations in which the Applicants Are Involved.

There is no material litigation or government investigation to which any of the Applicants is a party that would reasonably be expected to create any liabilities for any of the Domestic Insurers.

- (iii) Financial Statements of the Domestic Insurers and Their Parent.

The statutory financial statements, including Management Discussion and Analysis, of each of the Domestic Insurers for the last **three (3)** years are attached hereto as **Exhibits I-1** through **I-4**. The audited financial statements of Hopmeadow Holdings as of December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 are attached hereto as **Exhibit J.**²³

The statutory financial statements of each of the Domestic Insurers as of December 31, 2020, and quarterly financial statements for the Domestic Insurers as of March 31, 2021, are attached hereto as Exhibit L.

The Applicants will provide updated filings to supplement this Application, as requested.

- (iv) Affiliates

There are no insurance companies that are affiliates of the Applicants other than Klaverblad Levensverzekering N.V., Lifetri Uitvaartverzekeringen N.V., and Lifetri Verzekeringen N.V., all of which are insurance companies domiciled in the Netherlands that transact life insurance business in the Netherlands and are regulated by the Dutch Central Bank (the “DNB”), the Dutch banking and insurance regulator. As described in this Form A, Sixth Street’s acquisition of these companies, which is part of its broader insurance investment activities in Europe, was approved by the DNB. The annual reports of Klaverblad Levensverzekering N.V., Lifetri Uitvaartverzekeringen N.V., and Lifetri Verzekeringen N.V. as of December 31, 2019, which are the most current annual reports available for these entities, are attached hereto as Exhibit M. An English summary of the financials from SNL Financial is included in Exhibit M.

- (v) ~~(iv)~~ Additional Information.

Additional information will be submitted as requested by the Commissioner.

[signature pages follow]

²³ Hopmeadow Holdings has advised the Applicants that no audited financial statements of Hopmeadow Holdings as of December 31, 2017 are available because Hopmeadow Holdings had no significant operations during 2017.

Item 14. SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION

SIGNATURE

~~Pursuant to the requirements of Section 38a-130 of the Connecticut General Statutes, Sutton Holdings GP, LLC has caused this application to be duly signed on its behalf in the City of _____ and State of _____ on the _____ day of _____, 2021.~~

~~(Seal)~~

~~SUTTON HOLDINGS GP, LLC~~

~~By: Sutton Holdings Investments, Ltd., its sole member~~

~~By: _____~~

~~—Name: _____~~

~~Title: _____~~

Attest:

~~By: _____~~

~~—Name: _____~~

~~—Title: _____~~

CERTIFICATION

~~The undersigned deposes and says that (s)he has duly executed the attached application dated _____, 2021, for and on behalf of Sutton Holdings GP, LLC; that (s)he is the _____ of the sole member of such company and that (s)he is authorized to execute and file such instrument. Deponent further says that (s)he is familiar with the instrument and the contents thereof, and that the facts therein set forth are true to the best of his/her knowledge, information and belief.~~

~~_____
(Signature)~~

~~Name: _____~~

Item 14. SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION

SIGNATURE

~~Pursuant to the requirements of Section 38a-130 of the Connecticut General Statutes, Sutton Holdings Investments, Ltd. has caused this application to be duly signed on its behalf in the City of _____ and State of _____ on the _____ day of _____, 2021.~~

~~(Seal)~~

~~SUTTON HOLDINGS INVESTMENTS, LTD.~~

~~By: _____~~

~~—Name:—~~

~~Title:—~~

~~Attest:~~

~~By: _____~~

~~—Name:—~~

~~—Title:—~~

CERTIFICATION

~~The undersigned deposes and says that (s)he has duly executed the attached application dated _____, 2021, for and on behalf of Sutton Holdings Investments, Ltd.; that (s)he is the _____ of such company and that (s)he is authorized to execute and file such instrument. Deponent further says that (s)he is familiar with the instrument and the contents thereof, and that the facts therein set forth are true to the best of his/her knowledge, information and belief.~~

~~_____
(Signature)~~

~~Name:~~

Item 14. SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION

SIGNATURE

~~Pursuant to the requirements of Section 38a-130 of the Connecticut General Statutes, Sutton Investments, LLC has caused this application to be duly signed on its behalf in the City of _____ and State of _____ on the _____ day of _____, 2021.~~

~~(Seal)~~

~~SUTTON INVESTMENTS, LLC~~

~~By: _____
Name: _____
Title: _____~~

~~Attest:~~

~~By: _____
Name: _____
Title: _____~~

CERTIFICATION

~~The undersigned deposes and says that (s)he has duly executed the attached application dated _____, 2021, for and on behalf of Sutton Investments, LLC; that (s)he is the _____ of such company and that (s)he is authorized to execute and file such instrument. Deponent further says that (s)he is familiar with the instrument and the contents thereof, and that the facts therein set forth are true to the best of his/her knowledge, information and belief.~~

~~_____
(Signature)~~

~~Name:~~

Item 14. SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION

SIGNATURE

~~Pursuant to the requirements of Section 38a-130 of the Connecticut General Statutes, TAO Sutton Holdings, LLC has caused this application to be duly signed on its behalf in the City of _____ and State of _____ on the _____ day of _____, 2021.~~

~~(Seal)~~

~~TAO SUTTON HOLDINGS, LLC~~

~~By: TAO Insurance Holdings, LLC, its managing member~~

~~By: _____~~

~~—Name: _____~~

~~Title: _____~~

Attest:

By: _____

—Name: _____

—Title: _____

CERTIFICATION

~~The undersigned deposes and says that (s)he has duly executed the attached application dated _____, 2021, for and on behalf of TAO Sutton Holdings, LLC; that (s)he is the _____ of the managing member of such company and that (s)he is authorized to execute and file such instrument. Deponent further says that (s)he is familiar with the instrument and the contents thereof, and that the facts therein set forth are true to the best of his/her knowledge, information and belief.~~

~~_____
(Signature)~~

~~Name: _____~~

Item 14. SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION

SIGNATURE

~~Pursuant to the requirements of Section 38a-130 of the Connecticut General Statutes, TAO Insurance Holdings, LLC has caused this application to be duly signed on its behalf in the City of _____ and State of _____ on the _____ day of _____, 2021.~~

~~(Seal)~~

~~TAO INSURANCE HOLDINGS, LLC~~

~~By: _____
Name: _____
Title: _____~~

~~Attest:~~

~~By: _____
Name: _____
Title: _____~~

CERTIFICATION

~~The undersigned deposes and says that (s)he has duly executed the attached application dated _____, 2021, for and on behalf of TAO Insurance Holdings, LLC; that (s)he is the _____ of such company and that (s)he is authorized to execute and file such instrument. Deponent further says that (s)he is familiar with the instrument and the contents thereof, and that the facts therein set forth are true to the best of his/her knowledge, information and belief.~~

~~_____
(Signature)~~

~~Name:~~

Item 14. SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION

SIGNATURE

~~Pursuant to the requirements of Section 38a-130 of the Connecticut General Statutes, A. Michael Muscolino has signed this application in the City of _____ and State of _____ on the _____ day of _____, 2021.~~

~~_____
Name: A. Michael Muscolino~~

Attest:

~~By: _____~~

~~—Name:—~~

~~—Title:—~~

CERTIFICATION

~~The undersigned deposes and says that (s)he has duly executed the attached application dated _____, 2021 as an individual applicant. Deponent further says that (s)he is familiar with the instrument and the contents thereof, and that the facts therein set forth are true to the best of his/her knowledge, information and belief.~~

~~_____
(Signature)~~

~~Name: A. Michael Muscolino~~

Item 14. SIGNATURE AND CERTIFICATION

SIGNATURE

~~Pursuant to the requirements of Section 38a-130 of the Connecticut General Statutes, Alan Waxman has signed this application in the City of _____ and State of _____ on the _____ day of _____, 2021.~~

~~Name: Alan Waxman~~

Attest:

~~By: _____
Name:
Title:~~

CERTIFICATION

~~The undersigned deposes and says that (s)he has duly executed the attached application dated _____, 2021 as an individual applicant. Deponent further says that (s)he is familiar with the instrument and the contents thereof, and that the facts therein set forth are true to the best of his/her knowledge, information and belief.~~

(Signature)

Name: Alan Waxman

Summary report:	
Litera® Change-Pro for Word 10.8.2.11 Document comparison done on 5/14/2021 2:22:18 PM	
Style name: Standard	
Intelligent Table Comparison: Active	
Original DMS: iw://NYCDMS/NewYork/42551784/1	
Modified DMS: iw://NYCDMS/NewYork/42551784/16	
Changes:	
Add	197
Delete	197
Move From	2
Move To	2
Table Insert	8
Table Delete	0
Table moves to	0
Table moves from	0
Embedded Graphics (Visio, ChemDraw, Images etc.)	0
Embedded Excel	0
Format changes	1
Total Changes:	407